
© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 

ANTIFRAUD (D) TASK FORCE 
 
Antifraud (D) Task Force Aug. 14, 2024, Minutes  

Improper Marketing of Health Insurance (D) Working Group Aug. 14, 2024, Minutes (Attachment One) 
 

 
 



Draft Pending Adoption 
 

 

© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 1 

30Draft: 8/20/24 
 

Antifraud (D) Task Force 
Chicago, Illinois 
August 14, 2024 

 
The Antifraud (D) Task Force met in Chicago, IL, Aug. 14, 2024. The following Task Force members participated: 
John F. King, Chair (GA); Trinidad Navarro, Vice Chair, represented by Susan Jennette (DE); Barabara D. Richardson 
represented by Lori Munn (AZ); Andrew N. Mais represented by Kurt Swan (CT); Karima M. Woods represented 
by Mike Ross (DC); Michael Yaworsky represented by Alex May and Chris Welch (FL); Dean L. Cameron represented 
by Randy Pipal (ID); Sharon P. Clark represented by Juan Garrett (KY); Timothy J. Temple represented by Nathan 
Strebeck (LA); Grace Arnold represented by T.J. Patton (MN); Mike Chaney represented by John Hornback (MS); 
Eric Dunning represented by Maggie Reinert and Martin Swanson (NE); D.J. Bettencourt represented by Josh 
Hilliard (NH); Alice T. Kane represented by Roberta Baca (NM); Scott Kipper represented by David Cassetty (NV); 
Glen Mulready represented by Rick Wagnon (OK); Andrew R. Stolfi represented Cassie Soucy (OR); Michael 
Humphreys represented by David Buono (PA); Elizabeth Kelleher Dwyer represented by Matt Gendron (RI); 
Michael Wise represented Melissa Manning (SC); Cassie Brown represented by Leah Gillum (TX); Jon Pike 
represented by Armand Glick (UT); Scott A. White represented by Juan Rodriguez Jr. and Richard Tozer (VA); and 
Nathan Houdek represented by Rebecca Rebholz (WI).  
 
1. Adopted its Spring National Meeting Minutes 
 
Glick made a motion, seconded by Swanson, to adopt the Task Force’s March 17 minutes (See NAIC Proceedings 
– Spring 2024, Antifraud (D) Task Force). The motion passed unanimously. 
 
2. Discussed a Review of its 2025 Charges 
 
Commissioner King said it is the time of year that the Task Force must review its current charges and make 
comments on or suggestions for its 2025 charges. Commissioner King said NAIC staff will distribute an email 
exposing the 2024 charges for a 30 day comment period ending Sept. 20.  
 
3. Heard a Presentation on AI 
 
Strebeck gave a presentation to the Task Force on how artificial intelligence (AI) is affecting insurance fraud. 
Strebeck said that fraud costs consumers $308 billion annually. He said 16% of the U.S. agree that fraud is 
acceptable and not an issue, while 84% agree that insurance fraud is a crime. Strebeck said survey results show 
that younger generations tend to be more accepting of insurance fraud, whereas older generations responded 
that they consider insurance fraud a crime. He said the data indicates that this could be a growing concern.  
Strebek said a demographic study provided a look at how consumers feel about filing claims on their insurance 
policy. He said Louisiana data show that fraud reports are increasing, technology is a catalyst for insurance fraud, 
and innovation is necessary if the fight against insurance fraud is to continue. Strebek said he looks forward to 
working with NAIC staff to provide additional training or information on the ever-changing technology and how it 
affects insurance fraud. 
 
4. Adopted the Report of the Improper Marketing of Health Insurance (D) Working Group 

  
Swanson said the Working Group met Aug. 14. During this meeting, the Working Group adopted its Spring National 
Meeting minutes and heard from the federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and America’s 
Health Insurance Plans (AHIP) concerning the current issues consumers are experiencing with continued agent 



Draft Pending Adoption 
 

 

© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 2 

transfers of policies. The Working Group discussed the importance of this issue as it concerns consumer 
protection. Swanson said CMS advised the Task Force that at the 2025 Spring National Meeting, it will have a 12-
month time frame of data to review and determine if current efforts are making the impact necessary to protect 
consumers. Swanson said the Working Group will meet in regulator-to-regulator and open session to continue 
discussions with state, federal, and industry representatives in order to protect consumers. Swanson said the 
Working Group heard from Brian Webb (NAIC) about current congressional movements taking place in addition 
to an update on the Affordable Care Act (ACA) marketing issues.  
 
Gendron made a motion, seconded by Buono, to adopt the report of the Improper Marketing of Health Insurance 
(D) Working Group (Attachment One). The motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. Received an Update from the Antifraud Technology (D) Working Group 
 
Glick said the Working Group has been working with NAIC staff to implement the revised Online Fraud Reporting 
System (OFRS) web service in states. He said the Working Group will meet to discuss the current fields found 
within the National Insurance Crime Bureau (NICB) reporting system and the fields that fraud directors want within 
the OFRS. Glick said the Working Group is aware of a letter sent from the Coalition Against Insurance Fraud (CAIF) 
to request the development of the Antifraud Plan Repository, which will be addressed in its update to the Working 
Group. 
 
6. Heard Reports From Interested Parties 

 
A. CAIF 

 
Brent Walker (CAIF) said the CAIF has been focusing on three areas: 1) outreach; 2) advocacy; and 3) research. 
Walker said the CAIF supports the application of resources for online antifraud initiatives and will continue to work 
with states and their members to provide these resources. He said the CAIF is currently implementing strategic 
planning. It has created two new task forces, the Property and Casualty Task Force and the Medical Task Force. 
Walker said the CAIF has added Kate Gordon as its general counsel to help improve the organization. Walker said 
the CAIF will release a podcast to support the fight against insurance fraud.  
 

B. NICB 
 
Edward Tobin (NICB) said the NICB has been working with NAIC staff on the OFRS implementation and 
enhancements. Tobin said the NICB spoke to the Task Force in March regarding the Contract Fraud Awareness 
Week that took place in May. Tobin said the discussions that took place were great and that he appreciated the 
support from the Task Force members. He said that, regarding legislative highlights, there were seven new bill 
packages. Tobin said the NICB is continuing to work with new insurance Commissioners to help ensure they have 
access to referrals, data, intel reports, and all the necessary investigative assistance. Tobin said the 7th Annual 
National Conference of Insurance Crime Attorneys will take place Oct. 8–9 in Shamberg, IL. 
 
Having no further business, the Antifraud (D) Task Force adjourned. 
  
AFTF 8.14.24 Minutes 
 

https://naiconline.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/NAICSupportStaffHub/Member%20Meetings/D%20CMTE/2024%20Summer/AFTF/Minutes/AFTF%208.14.24%20Minutes.docx?d=w38fcd5e0fbc645e89a27e3ed3f4efe77&csf=1&web=1&e=v0nuej


Draft Pending Adoption 
Attachment One 

Antifraud (D) Task Force 
8/14/24 

© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 1 

Draft: 8/21/24 
 

Improper Marketing of Health Insurance (D) Working Group 
Chicago, Illinois 
August 14, 2024 

 
The Improper Marketing of Health Insurance (D) Working Group of the Antifraud (D) Task Force met in Chicago, 
IL, Aug. 14, 2024. The following Working Group members participated: Martin Swanson, Chair (NE); David Buono, 
Vice Chair (PA); Maria Ailor (AZ); Kurt Swan (CT); Susan Jennette (DE); Andria Seip (IA); Erica Weyhenmeyer (IL); 
Craig VanAalst (KS); Joseph Garcia (MI); T.J. Patton (MN); Patrick Smock (RI); Jill Kruger and Travis Jordan (SD); 
Matthew Tarpley (TX); John Haworth (WA); and Bryan Stevens (WY). 
 
1. Adopted its Spring National Meeting Minutes 
 
Haworth made a motion, seconded by Weyhenmeyer, to adopt the Working Group’s March 17 minutes (see NAIC 
Proceedings – Spring 2024, Antifraud (D) Task Force). The motion passed unanimously. 
 
2. Discussed Unauthorized Agent Transfer Issues   

 
Swanson said the Working Group began discussing unauthorized agent transfer issues during the 2023 Fall 
National Meeting. For today’s meeting, the Working Group asked America’s Health Insurance Plans (AHIP) and 
the federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to address current actions taking place to protect 
consumers from these issues. 
 
Kelley Schultz (AHIP) said AHIP started hearing about unauthorized agent transfer issues from its members during 
the fall of 2023, and in 2024, this issue was firmly brought to AHIP. According to CMS, there were 90,0000 enrolled 
as of May 2024. Schultz said there were 6,000 complaint cases in 2023 of unauthorized agent transfer issues and 
9,000 cases at the beginning of 2024, which has caused a huge burden for consumers. She said these issues have 
caused tax implications for some people when they did not qualify for tax breaks due to switching policies. Schultz 
said this has generated the need for its members to utilize a variety of tactics to fight against known authorized 
transfer issues.  
 
Schultz said AHIP has discussed solutions to assist with transferring policies, including a possible system 
verification that enables two-factor authentication and a State Based System (SBS) that balances protecting 
consumers while not creating other issues that could potentially block their path to enrollment. She said AHIP will 
continue to work with its members, regulators, and the Senate Finance Committee to identify unauthorized agent 
transfer trends and fight against these bad actors. 
 
Swanson said in Nebraska, they have encountered companies that have sent termination for cause notices to the 
department of insurance (DOI) when they find out that someone has transferred a policy. He said that this has 
been very helpful for the state.   
 
Jeff Grant (CMS) said CMS continues to investigate unauthorized agent transfer issues, and it is coordinating with 
state departments of insurance to move these efforts along. Gina Zdanowicz (CMS) is working on a plan 
management effort and is leading the agent broker consumer quality initiative, which started in January.  
 
Grant said the issues with unauthorized agent and broker transfers have become a prominent focus for CMS. He 
said the good news is that enrollment grew this past year due to good acting agents and brokers. While there are 



Draft Pending Adoption 
Attachment One 

Antifraud (D) Task Force 
8/14/24 

© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 2 

bad actors out there in the marketplace that have contributed to these policy switches, it is a small percentage 
over a large denominator. Out of 90,000 enrolled, only a small percentage is causing these issues. He said in order 
to stop these bad actors, CMS started with a two-pronged approach, which was upping its enforcement with the 
increase in agents and brokers and focusing on quality. CMS is challenged to hit the correct metrics for consumer 
protection, and the goal is to provide a value-added service and not move enrollment numbers through as fast as 
possible. He said there are also a lot of data-matching issues that sometimes overlap with other issues, and these 
issues did assist with identifying unauthorized transfers, which provided CMS with the tools to be proactive and 
stop these unethical agents and brokers. The goal is to continue being proactive and monitor for any signs of 
fraudulent activity.  
 
Zdanowicz said CMS has improved its agreements with states so that it can share information on suspicious claims. 
She said there is more to do, and CMS knows that, but with continued collaboration, they have made good 
progress and hit many of the points that the states have requested. Zdanowicz said they are also working with 
carriers and are already sharing terminations of cause. The termination notifications assist with the process, as 
some of these bad actors will be allowed to prove their good standing and come back.  
 
Grant said there will be ongoing minor technical fixes that will be made to the process for a more enhanced direct 
enrollment, and CMS expects these to continue.  
 
Swanson said that he and Buono have participated in several calls with CMS to analyze the data on these 
unauthorized transfers and assist with removing unethical agents and brokers. He said some specific things are 
delaying this process, including what is necessary at minimum for law enforcement purposes, and states are 
working to figure this out. Swanson said states have many of the same standards for fraud enforcement; however, 
each can be different, and some states may not have a fraud unit.  
 
Stevens said that CMS mentioned the bad actors who have been removed have the ability to come back. He asked 
CMS if they could explain why they are allowed back.   
 
Grant said it does suspend unethical agents and brokers, and if they do not respond to the suspension, then they 
are terminated. If they are terminated, they must wait five years before they can fill out paperwork with the Office 
of Inspector General (OIG) and work as an agent or broker again; however, there is no lifetime ban.   
 
Buono said that the conversation surrounding these unauthorized transfers was not good two meetings ago, and 
then the next meeting was not much better. However, he noted that Grant came fully prepared for this meeting, 
and he thanked him on behalf of the Working Group for assisting with this serious issue and taking the opportunity 
to discuss it. He asked Grant if there would be any data that could be analyzed during the next meeting to utilize 
the momentum that was created during this meeting. Grant said by March 2025, CMS will have 12 months’ worth 
of data that it could bring to the Working Group to review, with approval from CMS. Buono said the Working 
Group has seen the great progress made on this serious issue, but it wants to ensure that this progress continues, 
so reviewing the data in March will give it a good idea of what progress is being made.  
 
3. Heard an Update on Congressional Activity  
 
Brain Webb (NAIC) said the focus has been on improper marketing within the Affordable Care Act (ACA) and 
unauthorized agent transfers. He said that even though these have been the focus, if there are other issues states 
are seeing, please reach out to the NAIC. Webb said that with open enrollment coming up on Nov. 1, it will be a 
busy time, and more issues will surface.  
 



Draft Pending Adoption 
Attachment One 

Antifraud (D) Task Force 
8/14/24 

© 2024 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 3 

Webb said there are two areas of Congressional movement pertinent to the industry. The first is Medicare 
Advantage, and the NAIC is continuing to work with Congress to create a greater role for states in enforcing federal 
rules under Medicare Advantage, especially in marketing. He said it is possible that an end-of-year package will 
be available after the presidential and state elections.  
 
Webb said the other area is that the Senate Finance Committee is working on a specific bill for the ACA that would 
greatly enhance penalties on agents, brokers, and anyone selling or part of the process who provides 
misinformation or files applications without proper documentation. He said this would explicitly give CMS 
authority over field marketing organizations and third-party marketing organizations, and any entities that are in 
the chain of enrollment would go through an ACA plan that is enrolled through the federal exchange.  
 
Having no further business, the Improper Marketing of Health Insurance (D) Working Group adjourned. 
 
 
 
 


	Content
	0
	1

